
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Morris Plains Planning Board held on 
August 20, 2012 at 7:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 531 Speedwell Avenue.  
The following members were present: 

Present:     Mr. Andre Jensen 
   Mrs. Sydney Leach, Vice Chair  

      Mr. Ralph Lopez, Chair 
          Mr. Leo Nichols 
       Mr. Hank Sawoski 
       Mr. Donald Underhill 
       Mr. Raymond Zabihach    
       Mayor Frank J. Druetzler  
  
 Absent:     Mr. Vincent Novak 
 
 Absent:     Leon Hall, Borough Engineer    
       William Denzler, Borough Planner  
       Christopher Falcon, Board Attorney 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mr. Lopez.  Mr. Lopez made the statement 
that adequate notice of this meeting has been published and posted in 
accordance with Chapter 231 of the Public Law of 1975, "Open Public Meetings 
Act." 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

Mr. Lopez opened the meeting to the public to speak on matters other than those 
on the agenda.  No comments were forthcoming, and this portion of the meeting 
was closed to the public. 
 
Mr. Lopez commented that tonight’s meeting is a joint meeting of the Borough 
Council and Planning Board.  The purpose of the meeting is to review a concept 
plan presentation by M & M Realty Partners. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Mr. Nichols moved that the minutes as circulated of the May 14, 2012 Regular 
Meeting be approved, seconded by Mrs. Leach.  
Roll Call 

 Yeas: Mr. Jensen, Mrs. Leach, Mr. Lopez, Mr. Nichols, Mr. Sawoski, Mr. 
Underhill, Mr. Zabihach, Mayor Druetzler 

    Nays: None 
 Absent: Mr. Novak 
Motion carried. 
 
 
CORRESPONDENCE AND BILLS 



Mr. Nichols read the vouchers presented for payment: 
 
William Denzler & Associates   PO#90439  $345.00  
For Professional Services rendered to the Planning Board, July, 2012 &   
   Open Space Map Amendment     `  
Anderson & Denzler Associates, Inc.  PO#90403  $  72.40        

For Professional Services rendered to the Planning Board, April 2012 
 
Mr. Nichols moved that the vouchers as read be approved, seconded by Mr. 
Underhill. 
Roll Call 

 Yeas: Mr. Jensen, Mrs. Leach, Mr. Lopez, Mr. Nichols, Mr. Sawoski, Mr. 
Underhill, Mr. Zabihach, Mayor Druetzler 

     Nays: None 
  Absent: Mr. Novak 
Motion carried. 

 
Concept Plan – M&M Realty Partners – Tabor Road re-development 
 
Mayor Druetzler presented a summary of the plans for the west side (nearest to 
the railroad tracks) of Route 53, the Pfizer property.  He provided information as 
to Pfizer’s marketing efforts for this property over the past two years.  He stated 
that he and the Council suggested possibilities such as Wegman’s, a hotel 
conference center, a sports facility, some high-end restaurants and similar ideas; 
they did not want housing.  M & M Realty Partners has been doing due diligence 
at the site over the past four to five months, and possibly longer.  The new 
owners are Joe Marino and Jack Morris, and M & M Realty Partners closed on 
this property this past Thursday, August 16, 2012.  He believes it is a good idea 
to be holding this joint meeting of the Borough Council and the Planning Board 
as well as having the meeting open to the public.  The purpose of this meeting is 
to allow M & M Realty Partners to present their concept plan for this property.  It 
is not a formal hearing or an application hearing.  He also commented that 
whatever the final plans for the property are, the existing buildings will be coming 
down.  This is not an Application, not a formal hearing.  It is to bring this concept 
to the public and I and the council need input and ideas to create a project that 
the Governing Body and the Borough’s residents will be satisfied with when 
completed.  He stated that Warner Lambert, previously located at this site, had 
been a significant part of this community for a long time 
 
Mr. Douglas Henshaw, an attorney with Porzio, Bromberg & Newman presented 
a briefing on this hearing of the concept plan.  The hearing will include a 
Powerpoint presentation.  He provided brief introductions of those who will 
present the concept details on behalf of M & M Realty Partners.   
 
Mr. Marino stated he is aware that this is an informal meeting and that it is being 
recorded.  He provided background information for himself and his business 



partner as well as information concerning several development properties they 
are involved with, particularly their $800 Million development in Cherry Hill, New 
Jersey.  He stated he and his partner want only the best for the communities they 
have developments in, both residential and commercial the communities they 
serve.  He commented on nearby development that is underway such as the 
planned new Shop-Rite store and a Wegman’s to be located at a site off Route 
10 at Ridgedale Avenue that Mack-Cali owns.  He also commented that he and 
his partner prefer to create mixed-use development within the Borough of Morris 
Plains versus Morris Plains experiencing periphery growth at the municipal 
edges.  While he and his partner want and intend to propose an excellent 
development project for Morris Plains, he also knows that no matter what they 
propose probably everything will not please everyone.  He apologized for not 
being able to present a more formal presentation tonight.  He also spoke briefly 
about the importance of and the impact the economy can cause to projects such 
as the one they are proposing.  
 
Mr. Henshaw introduced Mr. Mark Mauriello, Director of Environmental Affairs 
and Planning, Edgewood Properties. 
 
Mr. Mauriello provided information concerning his background, including that he 
previously was employed by the New Jersey Department of Environmental 
Protection (NJDEP); “his heart is with the environment.”  He believes that 
development of a site such as this one presents opportunities to do something 
better than Greenfield development; breathing new life into dormant/blighted 
sites and that do not really contribute to the municipality.  He stated that the 
existing development footprint is the development blueprint they are 
contemplating for the site.  He spoke about Watnong Brook and how the stream 
corridor has been impaired by development over time; the downstream drainage 
area of which about 17 percent is located in Morris Plains while much of what 
contributes to the brook is not even in the Borough, but in Parsippany-Troy Hills 
(about 60 percent) and in Denville (about 25 percent); the existing buildings and 
pavements; elevations; and the existing but undersized stormwater basin.  He 
stated that the existing stormwater management system is insufficient to handle 
the amount of runoff from impervious surfaces and does not meet any standard 
that would govern development of a site today.  The buildings themselves are not 
flood compliant even though they have flood walls and pumps.  A primary need 
will be to manage all runoff issues in an attempt to keep as much runoff as 
possible on site; the more water that can be directed into the ground and hold in 
a basin means less water to flood the brook and the site.  He provided 
information on a variety of methods that are being contemplated to accomplish 
this.                          
 
Continuing, Mr. Mauriello spoke about the area that is classified as Blue on 
FEMA’s Flood Insurance Rate Map designating it as a 100-year flood (“one 
percent annual chance storm”) area.  He stated there do not have to be 100 
years between such events – Hurricane Floyd and Hurricane Irene are examples 



of this since there was not 100 years between these two storms.  Most of the site 
is in the Flood Hazard Area.  They will remove all the old structures and tanks 
and facilities that are related to the industrial manufacturing operation.  This will 
allow them to reclaim this floodplain area.  He explained other plans – lowering 
certain elevations; creating greater flood storage within the darker blue area; 
creating a wetlands complex; and reclaiming water storage capacity at the 
stream corridor as well as other related enhancements.  Also, between 25’ and 
50’ of area will be restored to green space along the brook to allow additional 
storage for flood waters.  He also commented on existing culverts and erosion 
areas.  The goal of these efforts is to create additional functional flood storage 
capacity along the brook.  The loss of this green space area has caused flooding 
on the site, on the road, and across the street.  He concluded his slide 
presentation stating he looks forward to working with the Borough and its 
Professionals and residents and offered an opportunity for an additional 
meeting(s) as needed to discuss specific concerns.  
 
Mr. Mauriello commented on flood barriers/gates around the buildings.  The site 
currently relies on mechanics to move storm water off the site.  The Borough is 
not below sea level and there should not be a need to use pumps to remove 
water.  Improved design should rectify this situation without gates and pumps.   
He reminded that the NJDEP has the most stringent flood hazard rules in the 
nation regarding a significant variety of matters, such as elevation, flood proofing, 
elevation of parking areas, and the like; the site would never be built today as it 
exists today.   
 
Mr. Joe Marino was next to speak.  He stated the proposed plan includes 97,000 
SF of retail, 300 rental units, 67 townhouses and 88 condominiums.  One of the 
interests they have in this site is its proximity to the train station; transit-oriented 
facilities have been extremely successful throughout the recession and have 
endured well through “tough times.”  The development will operate its own jitney 
service to the train station through the Downtown, back and forth.  He also 
commented on a hoped-for pedestrian-friendly walking path.  The site is 
approximately one-half mile from the train station.  On-site security will be 
provided as well as snowplowing, trash removal, landscaping and related 
services.  The apartments will be primarily one and two bedrooms; the 
townhouses and condominiums two and three bedrooms.  The multifamily would 
be four stories and three stories for townhouses and condominiums.   He also 
commented that corporate housing units would be available, too.   Corporate 
units would be furnished and would provide maid service.   
 
Continuing, Mr. Marino spoke about the retail plans and the kinds of businesses 
(national brand retailers) that would most likely be located at the site.  He 
discussed the issue of highway traffic versus off-highway traffic.   He also 
commented on unforeseen problems that can occur that virtually cannot be 
anticipated – he explained about his office in Clifton, New Jersey, never having 
had any flooding problems in 43 years – except last year during Hurricane Irene.  



Their proposed plan would do everything possible to avoid the occurrence of 
problems by making every attempt to anticipate such problems.  He commented 
on some of the possible categories of renters/buyers, specifically those who 
would depend on the train.   
 
Mayor Druetzler asked about the impact on the school system. 
 
Mr. Marino responded this is an issue they are researching.  Speaking of new 
properties they have, he stated they have seen very few children among those 
moving in.  He referred to a 2006 Rutgers report.  He commented on several 
social issues that can impact the number of children in general and who might 
live at their proposed development – it appears it is both harder to have children 
today as well as harder to afford children today.  Employment issues can also 
impact where families live.  Over time renters in a community can become part of 
the homebuying pool of people in the community.  There do appear to be less 
children in their developments today than in the past.   
 
Mr. Richard Reading spoke next on this concept plan.  He provided a brief 
summary of his background.  He spoke about the Borough’s ratable base as of 
2009.  Under the concept plan, there would be 455 residential units including 
multifamily rental units, townhomes and condominiums.  Their intent is to appeal 
to the “bookends of the population” – young professionals, empty nesters, and 
non-traditional families/individuals.  This is a product that has been growing in 
popularity throughout New Jersey, particularly on the rental side and is very “in 
tune” with current demographics.  He stated that 66.9 percent of all the 
households in the Borough do not have children under age 18 while 57 percent 
are one- and two-person households.  These are the potential consumers for 
occupancy of these units; they do not need or have interest in having large 
housing at this stage in life.    He also commented on financial matters such as a 
potential assessment of the property in excess of $100 Million.  The retail portion 
would also generate additional ratables.  .He also spoke about tax revenues and 
matters relating to the school district and school-age children.  He referred to a 
2006 publication related to the census and commented on various issues such 
as housing categories, transit-oriented developments and demographic 
multipliers (which have not been adjusted in quite some time and do not reflect 
the declining household sizes).  He stated that using formulaic tools available to 
him, he estimated that approximately 29 school-age children would live at the 
development, although at the highest estimate there could be as many as 47 
school-age children.   
 
Continuing, Mr. Reading provided additional information in connection with the 
possible number of school-age children and how the number would relate to 
financial matters such as ratables.  He also commented on on-site construction 
employment and employment that would be available at the commercial 
establishments when completed.  He estimated that once the development is 
occupied, the 455 households would be projected to generate about $28.9 Million 



in annual expenditures, including about $5 Million spent on shopping.  This re-
development plan is a plan to restore a ratable base to the Borough that has 
been diminishing.  He explained the implications of a diminishing ratable base:  if 
the Borough loses 5 percent of its ratable base and it is not replaced, those 
municipal costs need to be covered by the existing ratable base which means a 5 
percent increase in the costs; for example, a homeowner paying $8,300 in taxes 
would need to pay an additional $450 a year to replace lost ratable.  Their 
proposed re-development plan would stabilize taxes paid by all property owners 
in the Borough. 
 
The meeting was opened to questions from the Planning Board and the Mayor 
and Council.  
 
Councilman Karr asked Mr. Reading a question about the older census numbers 
being used and what his thoughts are about impacts for the future. 
 
Mr. Reading, referring to “Gen X” and “Gen Y”, stated they will represent smaller 
families who in many cases are deferring marriage and having fewer and fewer 
children; provided additional commentary regarding future trends on this issue.   
He believes one of the major changes in demographics for future trends will be 
that families will continue to be smaller, some possibly not having even one child. 
 
Mr. Lopez asked about the 455 units wondering if their projection for school-age 
children with this number of units is 29 children.  He also asked for confirmation 
that the entire site will be self sustaining.   
 
Mr. Reading replied that the lowest estimate for school-age children would be 10 
and the highest would be 47.  All the apartments will be one and two bedrooms 
while the condominiums will all be two bedrooms; the townhomes will be three 
bedrooms. He confirmed that the entire site will be self sustaining with no impact 
on the Borough.  The same concept has been used in other developments they 
have done.   He said that their projections as to the number of school-age 
children who would live at their other developments  was very close to their 
original projections; they were more to the minus/lower number than to a higher 
number.  
 
Mr. Lopez asked about flooding issues and the improvements they are planning 
to eliminate/reduce the chance of flooding problems.   
 
Mr. Mauriello responded that there will be no way to completely remove all 
flooding, but it will significantly help minimize flooding problems – less flooding 
across the road and less road closures.   He reiterated what will be removed from 
the existing site; that the grade will be lowered; and wetlands will be created 
adjacent to the brook.  He said that in floodplain management, “any improvement 
is a good thing”; these problems did not happen overnight and their intent is to 
pull back and restore/reclaim certain necessary areas.  



 
Mr. Marino stated they have never sold any of their investment properties; they 
are not developers who come in, develop, and leave.  He is 47 years old and is 
proud of all he has accomplished throughout the state and the country.  They 
manage all their properties and have staff all over the State who can respond to 
many problems.  They expect each site to “look better every year” with more 
flowers and trees and necessary maintenance.  They believe they are members 
of each community where they have developments.  He commented that with an 
attractive property across the street from the existing Johnson & Johnson 
property, it is likely there will be an increased opportunity to attract a national 
tenant to occupy it.  He also spoke about the growing corporate interest in 
providing as many nearby amenities as possible to their workforce.   He 
commented on the matter of affordable housing and that this very likely would 
generate more school-age children while senor citizens would not.   
 
Mr. Marino advised that he and Jack have been working for several years to 
encourage the possibility that affordable housing be offered to veterans first.  
This has been discussed with affordable housing advocates.  They believe very 
strongly about eventually being able to proceed with this option. 
 
Councilwoman McCluskey commented that it would be desirable if the proposed 
plan could include outdoor tennis courts, basketball courts, and a dedicated path 
around the perimeter of the entire development for walking.  She also asked 
about the possibility of semi-detached housing.   
 
Mr. Marino replied that their other properties do have tennis courts, clubhouses, 
biking pathways and other amenities.  The plan being discussed this evening is a 
preliminary one.  Additionally, he said they prefer multi-story without an elevator.      
 
Councilwoman McCluskey advised there is a significant senior population in the 
Borough who are seeking housing that is one floor, on the ground, nothing above 
or below. 
 
Mayor Druetzler added that in connection with the new Lennar development on 
Littleton Road a resident has stairs and more than one floor.  Some who had 
initially thought of buying at this development opted not to due to the stairs and 
multiple levels.   
 
Mr. Marino advised that their multi-level buildings in Cherry Hill have elevators.   
This has worked out well.   
 
Mayor Druetzler asked for Mr. Marino’s opinion as to how the re-development’s 
commercial properties might affect the Borough’s existing downtown.   
 
Mr. Marino replied that it would largely depend on the type of retailers.  He 
provided information on their experience of building their Cherry Hill development 



which essentially was that many existing local retailers decided to upgrade their 
sites.  They are involved with and work closely with the various local Chambers 
of Commerce.  Some businesses actually enlarged their businesses and some 
actually moved into the development’s commercial area. 
 
Mr. Reading spoke about a development he is involved with in Somerset County.  
He advised that merchants he talked with were very anxious for the development 
to open since they believed it would help their businesses because of the 
increased number of people for shopping.     
 
Mrs. Leach asked about issues relating to flooding potential.   
 
Mr. Mauriello replied to Mrs. Leach’s questions stating their hope is that the 
planned enhancements will make a bigger difference on the more frequent, less 
intense storms.  The improvements should significantly lessen the potential for 
flooding from lower intensity storms.  The process should be much more efficient, 
too.  Current State regulations do not allow for any additional fill in the floodplain.  
He also commented on the process of stabilizing the land.  For every area of land 
raised, there must be the same amount lowered.  “Whatever the changes, there 
can be no net increase.”  Runoff would not be increased by raising it.  He 
commented on runoff, recharging, basins, green space and related issues.  The 
goal of the newer flood regulations is to keep water on the site and to attempt to 
simulate natural infiltration versus piping the water off into the nearest brook or 
stream.  He provided commentary in connection with a Borough-owned basin 
that they may be able to improve to increase its function.   
 
Mr. Hall asked if the proposed re-development now has fewer units planned.  Is it 
505 units and 350 apartments or 455 units and 300 apartments? 
 
Mr. Morris replied that it is still the same number and explained set aside issues 
relating to affordable housing/contributions for other properties. 
 
Mr. Underhill asked about the project footprint – is it larger or smaller than the 
Pfizer footprint? 
 
Mr. Marino stated it is about 160,000 SF smaller. 
 
Mr. Nichols asked about their other developments such as those in Somerville 
and Cherry Hill.  Are the same kinds of services (for example, security) provided 
at these sites?  He also asked about sewers and water service and how these 
matters are decided within their plan. 
 
Mr. Marino replied that much of this work is accomplished by their engineers and 
sewer fees and water bills are paid.   
 



Councilwoman McCluskey asked about the role of the Morris Plains fire and 
police departments as well as EMT assistance.  Will the development be gated? 
 
Mr. Marino replied that the development would at times be looking for the support 
of the police department, and they do not have a fire department so would be 
depending on the support of the Borough’s fire department.  He spoke briefly 
about code enforcement and construction regulations.  Some of the residential 
areas will be gated such as the pool, tennis courts and where amenities are 
located.  This issue is still under discussion.  Their on-site security is “24/7.” 
 
Mr. Hall asked about the amount of impervious coverage when compared to 
when Pfizer was the owner. 
 
Mr. Mauriello responded that it is about the same. 
 
Mr. Lopez opened up this portion of the meeting to the public.  He instructed that 
speakers should rise and state their name and address. 
 
Mrs. Valerie Marr, 18 Valley Stream Circle, Morris Plains, stated where she lives 
is an area that has flooded in the past, particularly during hurricanes.  She 
explained some of the problems she has encountered over the years, 
commenting that Pfizer would advise to not worry and that there is not that much 
water coming toward Valley Stream Circle, but there is.   
 
Mr. Mauriello stated they are looking at the current condition of the site.  They are 
not increasing the coverage.  Everything they plan to do in connection with re-
development is designed and engineered to accommodate what currently is not 
being accommodated.  They have not yet done what needs to be done to 
quantify the situation, but they are not increasing the current stormwater runoff 
on the site.  He understands her skepticism, but he does not believe that their 
stormwater plans will in any way create an additional problem for the area where 
she lives.  No matter what improvements they include, flood problems will occur 
in a floodplain area.  It is a regional problem caused by the entire watershed 
being overdeveloped; having too much water going to the streams; and streams 
that do not function properly.    
 
Cross discussion concerning the various concerns about stormwater runoff, flood 
problems, wetlands, basins, recharging, water tables and related matters. 
 
Mrs. Susan Gibney, 7 Valley Stream Circle, Morris Plains, commented on her 
past flooding problems, specific ideas previously discussed about the developer’s 
plans to improve the potential flooding problems offering possible different 
approaches, and concerns she has in light of the proposed re-development plan. 
 
Councilman Zabihach commented that this plan has also been discussed at a 
Council meeting.  He stated there was a situation when 25” of rain fell in the 



month of August – this is very, very unusual.  All the capacity to absorb water 
throughout the entire watershed was gone.   A hurricane had come through and 
that is why the situation was quite bad.  Normally, the hurricane would not have 
caused such problems. 
 
Cross discussion continued regarding the issues being raised by Mrs. Gibney. 
 
Mr. Mauriello spoke about the impact of flooding on traffic.  He has had a 
preliminary meeting with the New Jersey Department of Transportation (NJDOT).  
He offered to provide an update(s) on these issues as it is available.  He is well 
aware of the long history of flooding issues at this site.  They also understand 
that as the new owners any site remediation issue(s) associated with this site 
that has not been resolved by Pfizer has become their obligation, and they are 
prepared to assume this responsibility.  
 
Mrs. Gibney commented that there was no official notice of this planned re-
development, and she wondered why.  She said she and others discovered 
information about it by themselves. 
 
Mr. Mauriello stated he also wondered why the sale was not disclosed months 
ago.  This is not how they operate; they are not a big corporation.   
 
Mr. Marino offered commentary on his understanding of the flooding problems 
stating he has complete confidence that they and their professionals will do 
everything to address them; to fix what someone else did.  They are committed 
to working with the community. 
 
Mr. Dan Kantor, 26 Sun Valley Way, Morris Plains, asked about parking – how 
many parking spaces and where they will be. 
 
Mr. Marino stated they are not that far along with this project to be precise about 
this information.     
 
Mayor Druetzler reminded this plan is a concept plan. 
 
Mr. Roy Stewart, 21 Sunrise Drive, Morris Plains, asked if the developers believe 
the problems discussed, specifically the water/flooding problems, can be worked 
out to the satisfaction of the Council, the Planning Board, most of the public and 
the Borough’s Professionals.   
 
Mr. Hall provided commentary on his thoughts on several details of the proposed 
stormwater plan.  He believes it will be an improvement over the existing 
situation. 
 
Mr. Mauriello replied they believe their efforts will make the flooding situation 
better.   



 
Mrs. Clorinda Landi, 94 Littleton Road, Morris Plains, spoke about the two 
storage tanks that will be removed. 
 
Mr. Mauriello advised that the entire site has been investigated for any areas of 
concern.  He does not know exactly what is in the storage tanks.  Remediation 
options have been approved by NJDEP.  All but approximately five have been 
implemented by Pfizer.  He is unaware of anything in the tank area that was an 
area of concern.   
 
Mayor Druetzler provided information about a chemical solution that was used 
many years ago to clean equipment.  This has gotten into the ground and the 
groundwater.  All the levels are certainly below anything that is dangerous; but 
there are a number of places on that site over on Valley Stream Circle where it is 
monitored but deep into the ground.  This situation is overseen by Mr. Hall and 
over time it continues to degrade. 
 
Mr. Mauriello stated they will continue to oversee the monitoring of this area of 
moderate concern, taking over from Mr. Hall.  The monitoring is to ensure that 
good/improved levels increase over time.  He provided a variety of additional 
information about this process and the reasons for it.   
 
Mr. John Hynes, 95 Sun Valley Way, Morris Plains, asked about the approximate 
timeline for this project. 
 
Mr. Marino stated he believes it will be a six-month demolition process.  He is 
uncertain how long the construction of the entire project will take at this time. 
 
Mayor Druetzler added that this will be a long process.  The location is not 
currently zoned for housing/residential.  More information will be needed to 
proceed further.   
 
Ms. Janet Griffin, 99 Sun Valley Way, Morris Plains, asked about possible 
damage in residential areas (perhaps to windows) as a result of the demolition. 
 
Cross discussion about the demolition process and what the possible impact 
might be on residential areas. 
 
Mr. Weldon Monsport, 7 Jaqui Avenue, Morris Plains, asked about possible plans 
for use of solar energy options. 
 
Brief cross discussion about the issue of solar energy 
 
Mr. James Richardson, Academy Road, Morris Plains, asked about the 
possibility of a handheld microphone being available for the next meeting.         
 



The presentation of the concept plan was concluded.  There was applause from 
those attending the meeting. 
 
Mr. Lopez announced a 15-minute break. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
Minor Site Plan Committee 

No report was presented by the Committee. 
 
Master Plan Review Committee 
No report was presented by the Committee. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Open Space Report 

Mayor Druetzer presented an update on Open Space.  A plan was distributed to 
the Board members prior to the meeting.   He commented that notations are on 
the plan of what the typical activities are at the various parks.   He reviewed 
some changes that have occurred since this plan was done and commented on 
certain of the lettered areas.  He commented on businesses and lands located on 
The American Road, specifically the Lighthouse properties, Fischer Scientific 
(formerly located on The American Road before relocating to Pennsylvania, and 
Coty).  Coty is a fragrance company and their American research headquarters is 
located in Morris Plains; its European research headquarters is located in 
Monaco.  Coty is expanding and just last week they signed a lease for the entire 
Building 5.  Significant funds will be spent in connection with expansion.  During 
the process of talking with Coty representatives relating to this expansion, it was 
learned that some people who work at businesses along The American Road use 
an informal path through the woods to reach the train station.  He was speaking 
with Mr. David Helmer of the Morris County Parks Commission and asked him if 
there might be any trail grants available in order to “formalize” this trail; there 
might be some funding available in the future.   
 
Mrs. Leach reminded of s conservation zone behind Building 5.  Coty is not 
planning to construct anything are they? 
 
Mayor Druetzler confirmed that Coty will just be renovating Building 5, not 
building anything new.  Coty recruits people to test their products and pays those 
doing so.   
 
Ordinance 14-201 – Review  

Mayor Druetzler reviewed this subject.  He added that when the Council 
introduces this ordinance, he hopes the Planning Board will support it.  He asked 
Mr. Falcon to provide comment on this. 
 



Mr. Falcon commented on a provision of this ordinance.  Mr. Hall has provided 
him with guidelines concerning demolition/removal of buildings in excess of 
100,000 SF.  This ordinance would apply to any demolition over 100,000 SF. 
 
Mr. Hall stated that M & M Realty wanted to demolish Building 182 on the Pfizer 
site.  This building is about three to four times the size of Building 170 that was 
granted site approval by the Board.  He said that with such a large demolition 
and not having any idea of exactly what they want to do – how the materials will 
be stored, staged and removed, the equipment, protection of steams, soil 
erosion, soil disturbance, location of existing utilities and disconnection of prior to 
demolition and other related issues – without a referral to the Planning Board the 
Borough would not have knowledge of nor input on their plans.  Because of the 
size of the planned demolition, the Mayor and Council decided to develop this 
ordinance. 
     
Mayor Druetzler reminded they have approval for “the pile.” 
 
Cross discussion about the demolition process from a variety of angles, including 
role of the Construction Official, blasting and dust, permits, asbestos removal and 
related issues. 
 
Mr. Nichols commented he was not sure such an ordinance is really needed 
while Mrs. Leach said she believes it is needed.  The demolition will be overseen 
by the Construction Official.   
 
Mr. Falcon presented his thoughts of why it is a good idea.   
 
Mayor Druetzler added that the ordinance provides “another set of eyes” to be 
sure the demolition is handled well and properly.  This will be a team effort 
including the Construction Official, Mr. Hall, perhaps a representative from the 
fire department who will meet with the developer’s team. 
 
Mr. Falcon stated he has provided a draft Resolution and provided his 
comments.   
 
The Board Secretary stated she will prepare a letter tomorrow advising of the 
vote tonight and the recommendation that it go to the Mayor and Council for 
second reading.    
 
Mr. Lopez read this Planning Board Resolution.   
 
Mr. Zabihach moved that this ordinance be adopted, seconded by Mr. Jensen. 
 
Mr. Nichols asked if this ordinance would apply to any other development that 
may occur in the future in the Borough.    
Roll Call 



 Yeas: Mr. Jensen, Mrs. Leach, Mr. Lopez,  Mr. Sawoski,  
Mr. Underhill, Mr. Zabihach, Mayor Druetzler 

    Nays: Mr. Nichols  
 Absent: Mr. Novak 
Motion carried. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
Escrow Report 

 
The Board Secretary reported this report looks good.  There is only one matter 
that is of concern – JMF Associates Waterview – she has called them twice.  She 
also provided information concerning Waterview of Hanover, advising that she 
has spoken with the Financial Officer about this and was advised the money is 
being returned to the owner of the property.   
 
Mr. Hall advised that American Hi-Tech Park, the previous developer of the 
property, was requesting the balance of its Planning Board escrow monies back.  
Before he feels comfortable recommending this, he wants Waterview and 
Hanover, LLC, the current developers of the property, to post monies in the 
Planning Board escrow.  JMF Associates was the developer just prior to 
Waterview.   
 
Cross discussion concerning the matter of the various Waterview issues. 
 
The Board Secretary commented that as she sees this situation as it exists now, 
all the various developers and/or owners are “mixed up” in the legal 
documentation. 
 
Mayor Druetzler asked Mr. Hall to investigate this situation further.  He also 
asked if anyone has any thoughts about the concept presentation. 
 
Mr. Lopez stated he saw it as a preview of the public’s thoughts, and he believes 
the flooding issues will be the major point. 
 
Mayor Druetzler provided some comments regarding the information offered 
regarding the plans to improve the flooding issues in the future.   He advised that 
a 1960’s projection of population for Morris Plains was 8,000.   
 
Mr. Denzler provided information in connection with affordable housing matter.  
He advised there is a bonus available and age-restricted would have to be 
looked at also.  The Borough will have to do more than 50.   
 
Mayor Druetzler reminded that the property obtained from Pfizer – the Easter 
Seal property – for affordable housing.  Negotiations have begun with the 
housing authority to construct age 55 and older restricted housing at this location.  
This will take at least three years for build.  A contribution will be made to this 



project.  The existing building will be coming down some time next month.  It will 
consist of 25 units.   
 
Mr. Denzler advised that affordable housing is currently in a state of flux and that 
he keeps going back to the 20 percent of new housing since this is what he 
keeps hearing. 
 
Mr. Zabihach provided a number of comments about his thoughts on the plan as 
presented at the meeting tonight including the need to create a redevelopment 
zone, not just changing the Master Plan to comply with the rules and regulations 
of redevelopment.  This development could be a financial windfall for the 
Borough.     
 
There being no further business, Mr. Underhill moved the meeting be adjourned, 
seconded by Mr. Jensen.  Voice vote.  All in favor.  Motion carried. 
 
 
 
        Karen M. Coffey 
        Commission Secretary 
 
Maureen Sullivan 
Recording Secretary 
 
 


